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ADDENDUM ONE
DATE:

April 15, 2011
TO:

All Vendors 

FROM:
Robert Thompson, Buyer

State Purchasing Bureau 

RE:

Questions and Answers for RFP Number 3613Z1
to be opened May 3, 2011 2 PM Central Time

Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned Request For Proposal.  The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the Request For Proposal.

 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1

	QUESTIONS
	ANSWERS

	1. We have received the information in the RFP.  It states that benchmarking of the facilities is required.  We believe that the data entry for energy star is complete for OPS and Millard Public Schools in Omaha.  Is it correct that gathering and entering the data for these schools will not be required?  

If the answer to that is yes, are there other schools that have already been entered into Portfolio Manager?  We noted York and North Platte have ratings. SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1

 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
	The Energy Office is aware that some schools have already been entered into Portfolio Manager. We expect the contractor to make a determination of which schools are already entered into the database and to make arrangements to collect data for the remaining schools. The Energy Office expects all public schools to be included in the ranking process in Phase I whether they are already entered or not. The goal is to have energy use reports for all public schools to establish a benchmark for energy usage in the state’s school districts. 
Making this determination is part of Phase I.

	2. Within the rankings of phase I, is it likely that each school building will be categorized into "air conditioned" or " heating only"?
	It is likely. This will be determined in cooperation with Energy Office staff during Phase I.

	3. On the Contractual Services Form, it states that proposals are due on May 3, 2011 at 5PM, and in the Schedule of Events on Page 1, it states that proposals are due on May 3, 2011 at 2PM.  Please clarify.
	The time listed on the Contractual Services Form is a typographical error.  The Proposals are due at 2PM on the bid opening date, per the schedule of events.

	4. Scope of work Phase 3 intends to work with the contractor to facilitate the implementation of energy efficiency projects through performance contracting.  Does this mean that companies that provide performance contracting services are the intended audience for the RFP?
	Not necessarily. Performance contracting is one way in which Phase III could be implemented. There may be other financing opportunities available. The type of financing mechanism will depend on the cost estimates of updates/retrofits, the timing of Phase III and the school district’s willingness to implement upgrades.

	5. The RFP gives details of the anticipated efforts.  “Investment grade” audits are requested though simple payback is also noted.  Can you provide additional information on what is the intended product of the Investment Grade audit?
	The intent of the Investment Grade Audit is to identify the most cost effective energy improvements in school buildings.

	6. RFP Cover Sheet indicates that responses are due at 5:00PM Central Time on 5/3/2011; page 1 under Section I. Scope of the RFP, A. Schedule of Events, Item 4, indicates 2:00PM Central Time on the same date; please clarify.
	Please see response to question 3.

	7. Please clarify that monthly progress invoices/payments will not be allowed, and that payment will only be made once Final Deliverables for each Phase are accepted.
	Yes, payment will be made once deliverables are completed and accepted by the State.

	8. Page 23, Section C, 1. Phase 1: Energy Star Benchmarking, item a.iv. indicates that the Contractor is to “update and maintain Energy Star Portfolio Manager building profiles throughout the length of the grant agreement”. It is assumed that this would correlate with the 4/30/2012 grant period, but please clarify.
	Yes, this is correct. The Energy Office anticipates the contractor to maintain this through 4/30/2012 whereupon it will transfer management responsibilities to the designated school district representative.



	9. Will implementation of Energy Efficiency Measures (retrofits) in Phase III, be allowed to be performed while classes are in session?
	This is unknown and will depend on each school district.



	10. Page 33, B. Cost Proposal Requirements, 1. Pricing Summary. Please clarify that the pricing for Phase II Activities is to be on a cost per square foot basis only, rather than a fixed price for all Phase II Activities. The applicable paragraph makes reference to both.
	The Energy Office expects to see the cost per square foot. 

	11. Page 24, C.2.a.iv Analysis of Energy Consumption; references a “reasonable return on investment”. For purposes of this project what will be considered a reasonable return on investment in percentage?
	The Energy Office expects a “reasonable return” to be based on a simple pay back calculation on the recommended projects and may also include life-cycle costing.

	12. On page 27 the successful bidder shall obtain school district energy information.  In regards to obtaining this information:

a. Will the State Energy Office or Administrative Services be contacting these school districts to inform them of this project and encourage cooperation with the successful bidder?

b. Since this information will be requested when many rural school districts are closed during the summer, what accountability does the successful bidder have in obtaining this information?

c. What assistance will the State Energy Office be if we find delays in receiving this information from the school district as they have no buy-in to the project schedule?

d. Do all of the school districts maintain a square footage area for each of their schools?

e. Paragraph C.1.a.iv on page 23 states to “Update and Maintain Energy Star Portfolio Manager building profiles throughout the length of the agreement.”  Does this mean we will be updating the profiles for 1000 schools monthly through April 2012?

f. What percentage of compliance from the school districts are you expecting?

g. What is the expected turn-around time for school districts to provide this information to the Contractor?
	a. Yes, the Energy office will send a form letter explaining the project.

b. The contractor will be responsible for obtaining this information.

c. If the contractor experiences significant difficulties, the Energy Office will mutually consult upon a resolution.

d. This is unknown. The contractor will be required to gather all data required to create a profile in Energy Star® Portfolio Manager.

e. Yes, the contractor will be responsible for updating all public school building profiles monthly through the end of the project.

f. The Energy Office expects all school districts to participate. As explained in the RFP, the Energy Office expects the contractor to ensure all public school districts and buildings are included.

g. To be determined by the contractor.

	13. The following are questions regarding the requirements and role of the CEM:

a. In lieu of the CEM requirement, would a licensed mechanical engineer, who is a LEED accredited professional, with 10 years, 15 years, or 20 years of experience be acceptable?

b. Paragraph B.9 on page 23 states that “A CEM must perform the Investment Grade Audits and Performance Contracting activities.  The CEM must be current by the time of the award and maintained throughout the length of the contract.

i. If 108 audits are requested as suggested in the RFP, there may only be 90 calendar days to complete Phase II.  This will require multiple CEMs to perform the audits.  Since current training and examination for the CEM is mid-May, exam results will not be available for 4-6 weeks and therefore, will not be available prior to time of award; however, they would be available prior to the start of the Phase II work.  Is this acceptable?

ii. Is it acceptable to have a licensed mechanical engineer perform the Performance Contracting activities?
	a. No, as stated in the RFP, a CEM is required. This is an energy efficiency project and the CEM certification is more appropriate than the LEED certification for this project.

bi. Yes, the contractor has to have at least one CEM on staff at the time of award. It is acceptable to train or contract for additional CEMs before the commencement of Phase II.

bii. Yes, as long as they are also a CEM.

	14. Project management services require the writing and managing of performance contracts.  We would assume that these contracts would be between the school district and a performance contractor.  Planning one month to evaluate the Energy Audits, is it feasible to get a school district and Board educated enough to agree to a performance contract and complete work between December 1, 2011 and April 30, 2012 with holidays?  What is the actual intent and anticipated timeline of a performance contract procurement process?
	The actual timeline for Phase III somewhat depends on implementation of Phase I and II. The funding for this project is from Department of Energy ARRA and must be spent by 4/30/2012. However, there are other financing options available to implement Phase III so it is conceivable that the implementation phase could last beyond 4/30/2012.

	15. Is there ARRA funding available for “low-hanging fruit” projects?  If so, what is the amount of those funds?  What would the procurement process be?
	This project will be funded with State Energy Program/ARRA funds. Whether or not funding is available for “low-hanging fruit” projects in Phase III depends on the costs of Phases I and II. There are other financing options available to implement Phase III. 

	16. Will the results of Phase 1 be published and made publicly available?
	Yes.

	17. What is the amount of funding available for Phase 1 and Phase 2?
	Funds have been allocated but the amount will not be disclosed. Phase I will be determined by proposals received. Phase II will be determined by Phase I.

	18. Is the intent of the Investment Grade Audit to produce guaranteed maximum pricing and guaranteed savings for the recommended measures, in the same way that an energy services company would perform this as a part of an energy performance contract?
	Not necessarily. The intent of the Investment Grade Audit is to further identify cost effective energy improvements in school buildings. The Energy Office will consider performance contracting as one potential financing mechanism.

	19. If Performance Contracting is being seriously considered as a method of funding and implementation, has the bidder’s list for this RFP been limited to only ESCo’s qualified to guarantee project price and performance as a part of the Phase II audit?
	Not necessarily, as Performance Contracting is not the only financing opportunity that may be considered for Phase III.

	20. Are Project Management services being considered outside of the context of a Performance Contracting model, or as a separate service in case the facility owner desires to implement using a traditional design-build approach?
	Yes.

	21. What is the basis for estimating that approximately 10% (108) of the total school buildings will be receiving investment grade audits?
	The estimate was based on perceived costs, timeframe allotted for the project, and a desire to provide opportunities for energy efficiency retrofits for a broad cross-section of schools throughout the state.

	22. Please summarize the reporting requirements for Phase I and II activities related to the ARRA funding.
	Three quarterly reports are required; one by the 5th of the month following the end of a quarter and the other two by the 15th of that month. If Phase III is funded with direct ARRA funding all requirements of HR 1 ARRA would apply (including but not limited to, Davis Bacon, State Historic Preservation and Buy American).


	23. Does the audit include design?
	No.

	24. Are there any mandatory vendors and/or service providers required to be included as part of coordination during the audit and/or implementation of qualifying Building Retro-fit projects?
	Energy Star®’s Portfolio Manager is required to be used for Phase I.

	25. Will you require hour-by-hour annual energy simulations as justifications for Building Retro-fit projects?
	Yes, in the Investment Grade Audit phase (Phase II).

	26. Will we be provided building drawings on all buildings?
	No.

	27. Will Systems Commissioning be required of the auditor and project management team?
	Yes, on any projects implemented in Phase III as well as training of personnel for ongoing operation and maintenance.

	28. What is the total ARRA dollar amount that the State plans to spend on the total project including the initial auditing through construction of various projects? 
	Funds have been allocated but amounts will not be disclosed. The total cost of all three phases is to be determined, in part, by proposals received.

	29. Does the State have the authority to implement projects in various School Districts or do their local School Boards control this aspect?
	No, the state does not have the authority to implement projects. The ultimate decision will be made by the local school board.

	30. Is the intent of this solicitation to have one Company handle the entire scope of work or are multiple selections envisioned to accomplish this scope of work in the given timeframe?
	The Energy Office’s intent is for one contractor to manage the entire scope of work.

	31. Since the project phases are being funded through ARRA dollars, do Prevailing Wages and Buy American Clauses apply to all project aspects?
	These requirements do not apply to Phase I or Phase II. If Phase III projects are funded with direct ARRA funds, all requirements of HR 1 ARRA would apply (including but  not limited to, Davis Bacon, State Historic Preservation and Buy American).

	32. Do all ARRA dollars designated to this process need to be spent by April 30th, 2012 or allocated to the project by April 30th, 2012?  
	Department of Energy ARRA funds must be expended or spent by April 30, 2012.

	33. Will Utility Data be consolidated and provided to the winning Company for Phase I of the process?
	No, that is part of Phase I.

	34. Has the State been working with any outside consultants in the preparation of this RFP?
	No.

	35. In the project overview section, page 22, there is mention to other state owned buildings and institutes of higher education, is this intended to be used at state facilities other than the 256 K-12 Districts referenced in the solicitation? 
	No.

	36. Page 2 Allows for contact with state staff pursuant to any pre-existing contracts or obligations, could a list be provided of companies who the State is currently contracted with that this RFP may affect?
	This would only apply if the bidder held an existing contract with a State of Nebraska agency.

	37. What specific ARRA funding has been appropriated to this RFP? Please identify the anticipated dollar amounts to be appropriated for Phase I, Phase II and Phase III. 
	Funds have been allocated but the amount will not be disclosed. Dollar amounts for Phase I, II, and III are to be determined.

	38. What input have the 256 School Districts mentioned in the solicitation had on the RFP?
	None thus far. This is a State-initiated effort to provide energy efficiency assistance to school districts in Nebraska.

	39. Is the intention of the State to select multiple companies and divide up the districts to these companies?  If so, what is the method to divide up the districts to each company?
	No.
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